COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ

REPORT ON AUDIT OF LA SELVA BEACH RECREATION DISTRICT

For the years ended June 30, 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023

Prepared By: County of Santa Cruz Auditor-Controller

December 2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS

AUDITOR'S REPORT	1
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: Government-wide Financial Statements: Statement of Net Position Statement of Activities	4 5
Fund Financial Statements: Balance Sheet – Governmental Fund Balance Sheet to the	6
Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet to the Government-wide Statement of Net Position-Governmental Activities	7
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances Governmental Fund Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,	8
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances to the Government-wide Statement of Activities – Governmental Activities	9
Notes to the Financial Statements	10
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (Other than MD&A) Budgetary Comparison Schedule – General Fund	21
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS	25
GENERAL INFORMATION	28



COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ

EDITH DRISCOLL

AUDITOR-CONTROLLER-TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR 701 OCEAN STREET, SUITE 100, SANTA CRUZ, CA 95060-4073 (83.1) 454-2500 FAX (83.1) 454-2660

December 8, 2023

To the Board of Directors of the La Selva Beach Recreation District La Selva Beach, CA 95076

AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of the La Selva Beach Recreation District (the District) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2020, 2021, 2022, and 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents.

Management's Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements per accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibilities

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit per auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risks assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.

La Selva Beach Recreation District Auditor's Report December 8, 2023

Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting principles used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

Management has not adopted a useful lives policy for capital assets. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that a useful lives policy be established for capital assets. The amount by which the departure would affect the assets and expenses is not reasonably determinable.

In connection with our audit contained herein, certain disclosures are necessary pursuant to Government Auditing Standards sections 3.20 through 3.30. As required by various statutes within the California Government Code, County Auditor-Controllers are mandated to perform certain accounting, auditing, and financial reporting functions, and are statutorily obligated to maintain accounts for departments, districts, or funds that are contained within the County Treasury. These activities, in themselves, necessarily impair independence with respect to Government Auditing Standards. Paragraph .16 of AU-C Section 705 states, "When the auditor is not independent but is required by law or regulation to report on the financial statements, the auditor should disclaim an opinion and should specifically state that the auditor is not independent." We are not independent with respect to the District as of and for the years ended June 30, 2020, 2021, 2022, and 2023, due to statutory obligations to the District as mandated by California Government Code.

Because of our lack of independence as described in the preceding paragraph, we do not express an opinion on the District's financial statements.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we have applied certain limited procedures to the budgetary comparison information, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods used to prepare the information, and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion on or provide any other assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

La Selva Beach Recreation District Auditor's Report December 8, 2023

Management has omitted the management discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 8, 2023, on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District.

Sincerely,

Edith Driscoll

Auditor-Controller-Treasurer-Tax Collector

Basic Financial Statements— Government-wide Financial Statements

LA SELVA BEACH RECREATION DISTRICT Statement of Net Position June 30, 2023, 2022, 2021 and 2020

	2023		2022	2021 .	 2020
<u>Assets</u>	 				
Cash	\$ 545,696	\$	494,535	\$ 458,598	\$ 387,565
Capital assets, net	304,645		304,645	 304,645	 304,645
Total Assets	\$ 850,341	\$	799,180	\$ 763,243	\$ 692,210
<u>Liabilities</u>					
Current					
Vouchers Payable	2,109		2,623	5,942	3,948
Accounts payable - Claims	13,454		3,378	17,445	4,957
Accounts payable - Payroll	844		627	447	298
Deposits from others	3,500		1,350	3,750	2,750
Deferred Credits			•	•	
Stale dated warrants	1,250		1,250	750	750
Total Liabilities	 21,157		9,228	 28,334	 12,703
Net Position					
Net investment in capital assets	304,645		304,645	304,645	304,645
Unrestricted	524,539		485,307	430,264	374,862
Total Net Position	 829,184		789,952	 734,909	 679,507
Total Liabilities and Net Position	 850,341	_\$	799,180	\$ 763,243	 692,210

LA SELVA BEACH RECREATION DISTRICT

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023, 2022, 2021 and 2020

Functions/Programs	2023	2022	2021	2020
Governmental activities General Government Total Governmental Activities	\$ (219,616) (219,616)	\$ (234,839) (234,839)	\$ (164,296) (164,296)	\$ (167,161) (167,161)
Program Revenues				
Charges for Services	42,280	57,480	27,610	52,022
Subtotal Program Revenues	42,280	57,480	27,610	52,022
General Revenues				
Property taxes	206,660	197,760	188,658	186,272
Interest income	9,133	2,026	2,651	6,416
Intergovernmental revenue	775	32,616	779	798
Miscellaneous revenue	-	•	-	40
Total General Revenues	216,568	232,402	192,088	193,526
Total Revenues	258,848	289,882	219,698	245,548
Change in Net Position	39,232	55,043	55,402	78,387
Net Position - Beginning	789,952	734,909	679,507	601,120
Net Position - Ending	\$ 829,184	\$ 789,952	\$ 734,909	\$ 679,507

Basic Financial Statements— Fund Financial Statement

LA SELVA BEACH RECREATION DISTRICT

Balance Sheet - Governmental Fund June 30, 2023, 2022, 2021 and 2020

General Fund

	2023	2022	2021	2020
Assets				
Cash	\$ 545,696	\$ 494,535	\$ 458,598	\$ 387,565
Total Assets	545,696	494,535	458,598	387,565
Liabilities and Fund Balance				
Liabilities:				
Vouchers payable	2,109	2,623	5,942	3,948
Accounts payable - Claims	13,454	3,378	17,445	4,957
Accounts payable - Payroll	844	627	447	298
Deposits from others	3,500	1,350	3,750	2,750
Stale dated warrants	1,250	1,250	750	750
Total Liabilities	21,157	9,228	28,334	12,703
Fund Balances:				
Nonspendable - imprest cash	300	300	300	30Ô
Unassigned	524,239	485,007	429,964	374,562
Total Fund Balance	524,539	485,307	430,264	374,862
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance	\$ 545,696	\$ 494,535	\$ 458,598	\$ 387,565

LA SELVA BEACH RECREATION DISTRICT

Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet to the Government-wide Statement of Net Position - Governmental Activities For the Year Ended June 30, 2023, 2022, 2021 and 2020

	2023	2022	2021	2020
Fund Balance - Total Governmental Fund	\$ 524,539	\$ 485,307	\$ 430,264	\$ 374,862
Amounts to be reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:				
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental				
funds.	304,645	304,645	304,645	304,645
Net Position of Governmental Activities	\$ 829,184	\$ 789,952	\$ 734,909	\$ 679,507

LA SELVA BEACH RECREATION DISTRICT Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Governmental Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023, 2022, 2021 and 2020

General Fund

	2023	2022	2021	2020
Revenues				
Property taxes	\$ 206,660	\$ 197,760	\$ 188,658	\$ 186,272
Interest income	9,133	2,026	2,651	6,416
Rents and concessions	42,280	57,480	27,610	52,022
Intergovernmental revenue	775	32,616	<i>7</i> 79	798
Miscellaneous revenue	-	<u>-</u>	•	40
Total Revenues	258,848	289,882	219,698	245,548
Expenditures				
Salaries and benefits	44,523	43,273	40,215	41,830
Services and supplies	167,086	•	124,081	125,331
Capital Assets	8,007	=	•	
Total Expenditures	219,616		164,296	167,161
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues				
Over (Under) Expenditures	39,232	55,043	55,402	78,387
Net Change in Fund Balance	39,232	55,043	55,402	78,387
Fund Balance - Beginning	485,307	430,264	374,862	296,475
Fund Balance - Ending	\$ 524,539	\$ 485,307	\$ 430,264	\$ 374,862

LA SELVA BEACH RECREATION DISTRICT

Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances to the Government-wide Statement of Activities - Governmental Activities For the Year Ended June 30, 2023, 2022, 2021 and 2020

		2023	 2022	2021	2020	
Net Change in Fund Balance	\$	39,232	\$ 55,043	·\$ 55,402	\$ 78,387	
	•	<u>.</u>	 •			
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities	\$_	39,232	\$ 55,043_	\$ 55,402	\$ 78,387	

Basic Financial Statements – Notes to the Financial Statement

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The La Selva Beach Recreation District (the District) was organized on September 1, 1953, under the authority of the California Public Resource Code, Section 5630 et seq., which was subsequently repealed. The District was reorganized in conformity with the Public Resources Code, Section 5780 et seq. The District was established to administer and maintain recreation facilities for the benefit of the community of La Selva Beach, California. The District is governed by a five-member board. The District does not have any component units for which they are financially accountable.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the primary government. These statements include the financial activities of the overall government except for fiduciary activities. The District does not have fiduciary activities. Eliminations would have been made to eliminate the double counting of internal service fund activities but the District has no internal service fund activities. Governmental activities are primarily supported by property taxes.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each function of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with the District. Program revenues include contributions from other governmental agencies that are restricted to meet the operational or capital requirements of the District. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including investment income, are presented instead as general revenues.

When both net investments in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted are available, unrestricted resources are used only after the restricted resources are depleted.

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

B. Basis of Presentation (continued)

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures. Funds are organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Separate statements for each fund category would be presented if applicable. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. The internal service fund is presented in a single column in the proprietary fund financial statements. The District has no proprietary or fiduciary funds, only governmental funds. Therefore, only one statement is prepared.

Governmental Funds

The District reports only one governmental fund, which is the general fund. The general fund is the general operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all financial resources.

C. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "which" transactions are recorded within the various financial statements. The basis of accounting refers to "when" transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus applied.

The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This differs from how governmental fund financial statements are prepared. Therefore, if applicable, governmental fund financial statements include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between government-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds. The District has no proprietary or fiduciary funds.

The accounting objectives of the economic resources measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net position (or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current) associated with their activities are reported. Fund equity is classified as net position.

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

C. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (continued)

Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred or economic assets are used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchanges and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

The governmental fund financial statements are prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.

In the current financial resources measurement focus, only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on the balance sheets. The operating statements present sources and uses of funds available for financial resources during a given period. The fund balance is used as the measure of available financial resources at the end of the period.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available means having been earned and collectible within the current period. Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the related liability is incurred.

New Accounting Pronouncements

The following GASB Statements have been implemented in the current financial statements:

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84

GASB Statement No. 84, *Fiduciary Activities*, provides improved guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes. The requirements of this statement are effective for the District's fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, addresses accounting and financial reporting for leases that were previously reported as operating leases by establishing a single model for lease accounting. The impact of implementation on the District's financial statements has not been fully judged. The requirements of this statement are effective for the District's fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

C. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (continued)

New Accounting Pronouncements-continued

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 89

GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period, establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. The requirements of this statement are effective for the District's fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 90

GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests – an Amendment of GASB Statement No.14 and No.61, is intended to improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a government's majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. The requirements of this statement are effective for the District's fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 91

GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, is intended to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. The requirements of this statement are effective for the District's fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 92

GASB Statement No. 92, *Omnibus 2020*, is intended to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during the implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. The requirements of this statement are effective for the District's fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

C. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (continued)

New Accounting Pronouncements-continued

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 93

GASB Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates, addresses agreements entered by governments in which variable payments made or received depend on an Interbank Offered Rate (IBOR) – most notably the London Interbank Offered Rate (LOBOR); and other accounting and financial reporting implications that result from the replacement thereof. The requirements in paragraph 11b will take effect for reporting periods ending after December 31, 2021. The requirements in paragraphs 13 and 14 will take effect for the District's financial statements starting with the fiscal year that ends June 30, 2022.

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 94

GASB Statement No. 94, *Public-Private and Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements*, is intended to improve financial reporting addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements. The requirements of this statement will take effect for the District's financial statements starting with the fiscal year that ends June 30, 2023.

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 95

GASB Statement No. 95, Postponement of Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance, is intended to provide temporary relief to governments and other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. It postponed the effective dates of certain provisions in Statements and Implementation Guides that first became effective or were scheduled to be effective for the periods beginning after June 15, 2018.

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 96

GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information technology arrangements for governments and end users. The requirements of this statement will take effect for the District's financial statements starting with the fiscal year that ends June 30, 2023.

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

C. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (continued)

New Accounting Pronouncements-continued

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 97

GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans, and Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a Supersession of GASB Statement No. 32, has the objective of increasing consistency and comparability related to reporting of fiduciary component units. The requirements of this statement will take effect for the District's financial statements starting with the fiscal year that ends June 30, 2022. Portions of this statement related to GASB Statement No. 84 were effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 98

GASB Statement No. 98, The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, established the term annual comprehensive financial report and its acronym ACFR. The new term and acronym replace instances of common pronunciation and its acronym in generally accepted accounting principles for state and local government. This statement was developed in response to concerns raised by stakeholders that the common pronunciation of the acronym for comprehensive annual financial report sounds like a profoundly objectionable racial slur. This statement's introduction of the new term is founded on a commitment to promoting inclusiveness. The requirements of this statement are effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2021.

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 99

GASB Statement No. 99, *Omnibus 2022*, enhances comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing (1) practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements and (2) accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees.

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective as follows:

- The requirements related to leases, PPPs, and SBITA are effective for the fiscal year that ends June 30, 2023.
- The requirements related to financial guarantees and the classification and reporting of derivative instruments within the scope of Statement 53 are effective fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023, and all reporting periods thereafter.

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

C. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (continued)

Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements

The following GASB Statements will become effective for fiscal years subsequent to June 30, 2023.

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 100

GASB Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, provides guidance to enhance accounting and financial reporting requirements for accounting changers and error corrections to provide more understandable reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or assessing accountability. The requirements of this statement are effective for fiscal years ending after June 30, 2024.

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 101

GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences, updates the recognition and measurement guidance for compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning the recognition and measurement guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously required disclosures. The requirements of this statement are effective for fiscal years ending after June 30, 2025.

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

D. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, building and improvements, improvements other than building, equipment, machinery and vehicles, are reported in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. District policy has set the capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at \$5,000 (equipment, machinery, and vehicles with a useful life over five (5) years) and \$5,000 (improvements other than building) and all buildings and land parcels regardless of value. Capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if the actual historical cost was not available. Donated assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date donated.

Depreciation would be recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets however; the District has not adopted a useful lives policy.

Maintenance and repairs are charged when incurred, Betterments and major improvements which significantly increase values, change capacities, or extend useful lives are capitalized. Upon the sale or retirement of capital assets, the costs are removed from the respective accounts and any resulting gain or loss is included in the results of operations.

The Governmental Fund Financial Statements do not present capital assets. Consequently, capital assets are shown as a reconciling item in the Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position.

E. Property Taxes

Assessed values are determined annually by the County Assessor as of January 1, and become a lien on real property as of that date. Taxes are due November 1 and February 1 and are delinquent if not paid by December 10 and April 10, respectively. The County bills and collects property taxes and remits them to the District under the State authorized method of apportioning taxes whereby all local agencies, including special districts, receive from the County their respective shares of ad valorem taxes collected. The District receives taxes from Santa Cruz County.

1

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

F. Net Position and Fund Balances

Government-Wide Financial Statements – In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, net position is classified in the following:

<u>Net Investment in Capital Assets</u> – This amount consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that is attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of the assets.

<u>Restricted Net Position</u> – This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments.

<u>Unrestricted Net Position</u> — This amount is all net position that does not meet the definition of "net investment in capital assets" or "restricted net position."

Fund Financial Statements – In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound to honor constraints on how specific amounts can be spent.

<u>Nonspendable fund balance</u> – amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not spendable in form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

<u>Restricted fund balance</u> – amounts with constraints placed on their use that are either (a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

<u>Committed fund balance</u> – amounts that can only be used for specific purposes determined by formal action of the District's highest level of decision-making authority (the Board of Directors) and that remain binding unless removed in the same manner. The underlying action that imposed the limitation needs to occur no later than the close of the reporting period.

<u>Assigned fund balance</u> – amounts that are constrained by the District's intent to be used for specific purposes. The intent can be established at either the highest level of decision-making or by a body or an official designated for that purpose.

<u>Unassigned fund balance</u> – the residual classification for the District's General Fund that includes amounts not contained in the other classifications.

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

F. Net Position and Fund Balances (continued)

The Board of Directors establishes, modifies, or rescinds fund balance commitments and assignments by the passage of an ordinance or resolution.

The District has no policy regarding whether to first spend a restricted fund balance when both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use. The District also has no policy regarding whether to first reduce committed amounts, followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts when an expenditure is incurred when amounts in any of the unrestricted classifications of fund balance could be used. The District considers all fund balances to be unrestricted.

NOTE 2. POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash balances of the District's funds are deposited with the County of Santa Cruz where the available balances beyond immediate needs are invested in various securities by the County Treasurer. Pooled balances are restricted to legally stipulated investments consistent with state statutes and the County's Investment Policy. Per GASB Statement No. 31, the County calculated the fair value of all investments included in the pooled investments based on quoted market prices. Any material unrealized gains or losses are reported along with investment income (interest). On June 30, 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023, the unrealized gains and losses applicable to the District are considered to be immaterial and, therefore, no adjustments have been made to the financial statements.

NOTE 3. CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of capital assets activity for the District for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023, respectively:

		Balance 6/30/19	Add	itions		tions/ is fers		Balance 6/30/20
Capital assets, not being depreciated Land Structures and improvements Equipment	\$	23,388 257,907 23,350	\$	-	\$	- - -	ş	23,388 257,907 23,350
Total capital assets, not being depreciated		304,645		-				304,645
Total capital assets, net	S	304,645	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	\$	-	\$	304,645
		Balance 6/30/20	Add	Additions		ions/ sfers		Balance 6/30/21
Capital assets, not being depreciated Land Structures and improvements Equipment	s 	23,388 257,907 23,350	\$	- - -	\$ 	-	s 	23,388 257,907 23,350
Total capital assets, not being depreciated		304,645	· 					304,645
Total capital assets, net	\$	304,645	\$	•	\$		<u>s</u>	304,645
	Balance 6/30/21		Additions		Deletions/ Transfers		Balance 6/30/22	
Capital assets, not being depreciated Land Structures and improvements Equipment Total capital assets, not being	\$	23,388 257,907 23,350	\$ 	<u>.</u>	s	- -	s	23,388 257,907 23,350
depreciated		304,645						304,645
Total capital assets, net	\$	304,645	S		\$		\$	304,645
	Balance 6/30/22		Addi	ions_	Deleti Trans		Balance 6/30/23	
Capital assets, not being depreciated Land Structures and improvements Equipment	\$	23,388 257,907 23,350	\$	- -	\$	-	s	23,388 257,907 23,350
Total capital assets, not being depreciated		304,645			<u>.</u>	_ .		304,645
Total capital assets, net	s	304,645	s		s		\$_	304,645

NOTE 4. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

Section 29120 of the California Government Code requires that expenditures not exceed appropriations. After the application of adjustments necessary for preparing the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, expenditures exceeded appropriations for salaries and employees benefits by \$1,498 for fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and \$950 for fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

Required Supplementary Information (Other than MD&A)

LA SELVA BEACH RECREATION DISTRICT Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

	_	Original Budget	Final Budget	-	Actual Amount	-	Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative)
Budgetary Balances, Beginning	\$	485,307	\$ 485,307	\$	485,307	\$	-
Resources (Inflows)							
Property taxes Use of money and property Intergovernmental revenue Miscellaneous revenue	_	240,015 31,350 600	240,015 31,350 600	_	206,660 51,413 775	_	(33,355) 20,063 175
Amounts Available for Appropriation	_	271,965	271,965	_	258,848	_	(13,117)
Charges to Appropriations (Outflows)							
Salaries and employee benefits Services and supplies Capital assets Total Charges to Appropriations	_	46,495 172,940 300,000 519,435	46,495 172,940 300,000 519,435		44,523 167,086 8,007 219,616	_	1,972 5,854 291,993 299,819
Budgetary Balances, Ending	\$ _	237,837	\$ 237,837	\$_	524,539	\$_	286,702

LA SELVA BEACH RECREATION DISTRICT Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

	_	Original Budget	_	Final Budget	_	Actual Amount	,	Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative)
Budgetary Balances, Beginning	\$	430,264	\$	430,264	\$	430,264	\$	-
Resources (Inflows)								
Property taxes		195,640		195,640		197,760		2,120
Use of money and property		43,720		43,720		59,506		15,786
Intergovernmental revenue		600		600		32,616		32,016
Miscellaneous revenue	_		_	-	_	•		-
Amounts Available for Appropriation		239,960	_	239,960	_	289,882		49,922
Charges to Appropriations (Outflows)								
Salaries and employee benefits		42,323		42,323		43,273		(950)
Services and supplies		274,137		274,137		191,566		82,571
Capital assets	_				_			
Total Charges to Appropriations	-	316,460	_	316,460	,	234,839		81,621
Budgetary Balances, Ending	\$ _	353,764	\$_	353,764	\$ _	485,307	\$	131,543

LA SELVA BEACH RECREÁTION DISTRICT Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

	_	Original Budget	_	Final Budget	_	Actual Amount	Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative)
Budgetary Balances, Beginning	\$	374,862		374,862	\$	374,862	\$ -
Resources (Inflows)							
Property taxes Use of money and property Intergovernmental revenue Miscellaneous revenue	_	232,640 32,760 600	•	190,640 32,760 600	_	188,658 30,261 779	(1,982) (2,499) 179
Amounts Available for Appropriation	-	266,000	_	224,000	_	219,698	(4,302)
Charges to Appropriations (Outflows)							
Salaries and employee benefits Services and supplies Capital assets	_	40,310 182,690	_	40,310 182,690	-	40,215 124,081	95 58,609
Total Charges to Appropriations	_	223,000	_	223,000	-	164,296	58,704
Budgetary Balances, Ending	\$_	417,862	\$_	375,862	\$_	430,264	\$ 54,402

LA SELVA BEACH RECREATION DISTRICT Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

	•	Original Budget		Final Budget	-	Actual Amount	Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative)
Budgetary Balances, Beginning	\$	296,475	\$	296,475	\$	296,475	\$ -
Resources (Inflows)							
Property taxes Use of money and property Intergovernmental revenue Miscellaneous revenue Amounts Available for Appropriation	-	191,000 64,720 800 - 256,520	-	191,000 64,720 800 - 256,520	_	186,272 58,438 798 40 245,548	(4,728) (6,282) (2) 40 (10,972)
Charges to Appropriations (Outflows)							
Salaries and employee benefits Services and supplies Capital assets	•	40,332 ¹ 157,640 10,000	_	40,332 177,640 10,000	_	41,830 125,331	(1,498) 52,309 10,000
Total Charges to Appropriations	_	207,972		227,972	_	167,161	60,811
Budgetary Balances, Ending	\$ _	345,023	\$_	325,023	\$_	374,862	\$ 49,839

Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*



COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ

EDITH DRISCOLL AUDITOR-CONTROLLER-TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR 701 OCEAN STREET, SUITE 100, SANTA CRUZ, CA 95060-4073 (831) 454-2500 FAX (831) 454-2660

December 8, 2023

To the Board of Directors of the La Selva Beach Recreation District La Selva Beach, California 95076

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of La Selva Beach Recreation District (the District), as of and for the years ended June 30, 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 8, 2023.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances to express our opinions on the financial statements, but not to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described in our separate letter to management dated December 8, 2023, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider material weaknesses and other deficiencies that we consider significant deficiencies.

La Selva Beach Recreation District December 8, 2023

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies regarding financial statement preparation and capital assets described in our separate letter to management dated December 8, 2023, to be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiencies regarding the insurance requirement described in our separate letter to management dated December 8, 2023, to be significant deficiencies.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control or compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing* Standards in considering the District's internal control and compliance.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management of the District and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

STIU

Auditor-Controller-Treasurer-Tax Collector

General Information

LA SELVA BEACH RECREATION DISTRICT General Information For the Years Ended June 30, 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023

Organization

The La Selva Beach Recreation District (the "District") was organized on September 1, 1953, under the authority of the California Public Resource Code, Section 5630 et seq., which was subsequently repealed. The District was reorganized in conformity with the Public Resources Code, Section 5780 et seq. The District was established to administer and maintain recreation facilities for the benefit of the community of La Selva Beach, California.

Directors and Officials

The District shall be governed by a Board of Directors. Each member serves a four-year term, with elections staggered every two years. The following were in office on June 30, 2023:

Ashely Winn, Chair & Rentals James Rhodes, Secretary Phillip Stevens, Treasurer Tony Young, Maintenance

Accounts and Records

The official accounting records are maintained in the office of the County Auditor-Controller. Supporting documents are maintained in The District files.

Minute Book

Minutes were recorded for meetings and contained approvals for disbursements.

Budgetary Procedures

The District prepared fiscal year budgets in accordance with applicable laws and regulations but did not attach the budget to the board meeting documentation as noted in the separate letter to management dated December 8, 2023.

LA SELVA BEACH RECREATION DISTRICT General Information For the Years Ended June 30, 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023

On June 30, 2023, The District's insurance coverage was as follows:

COVERAGE	INSURER	<u>LIMITS</u>
Personal Injury and Property Damage	CAPRI	\$1,000,000 per occurrence.
Public Officials and Employee Liability	CĄPRI	\$1,000,000 general aggregate limit.
All Risk Property Coverage	CAPRI	\$25,000,000 per occurrence,
Excess Insurance Coverage	CSAC	\$2,000,000.
	CSAC	Difference Between \$2,000,000 and applicable member and pooled layers of coverage.
Election Coverage	County of Santa Cruz	\$1,00Ô,0ÔO